## An Introduction to the Divine Mother's Tsunami of Love



Steve Beckow Editor-in-Chief Golden Age of Gaia

### Vancouver: Golden Age of Gaia, 2021

Copyright declined. Please copy freely

## **Table of Contents**

Introduction	3
2013	7
Mother, there are rumors of an "event" soon. Have you any word for us?	7
I am ready. Can you give us a word picture of the tsunami's arrival?	8
You've given us not only the tsunami of love, but waves of purity, clarity, and gra What are they designed to do, Mother?	ace. 9
2014	11
Not like I want it to, but when will the Tsunami of Love subside, Mother?	11
What is next after this Tsunami of Love?	14
Is it possible that some people will ascend out of the Tsunami of Love?	14
They will continue to fulfill their mission, etc is that correct?	14
For the majority, though, Ascension will come a little while longer down the line, 15	l think.
Mother, do you wish us just to take the vibrations in and be still?	15
What is the next step, Mother?	16
How would you describe the reactions of people to the Tsunami?	16
Your availability to us is surely unprecedented, Mother.	18
You've strengthened your Tsunami of Love?	18
Where will the Tsunami of Love take us?	19
2015	21
How do you work your magic, Mother?	21
How can we conceive of the Tsunami, Mother?	21
2017	24
What have you in store for us in 2017, Mother?	24
Because it's such a folly?	24
Is that why we can't remember anything - we're going around and around in a v machine?	vashing 25
2019	26
What is your intention for these latest waves of your Tsunami of Love, Mother?	26

### Introduction

The purpose of this short booklet is to provide an introduction to the Divine Mother's Tsunami of Love.

The Tsunami of Love is the major means by which the Mother is raising our vibrations in preparation for Ascension and through Ascension itself.

The question many people new to the subject may have is: Who is the Divine Mother? Is she ("She" or "she" - see 1) a guru? An alien? A goddess?

The Divine Mother is the active face of God; the Heavenly Father is the passive face. They are One God. The Mother herself explains, step by step.

"Let us be very basic. My essence is love. The Father and I are conjoined as One, our love. And it is from this union that all is born." (2)

We cannot approach the Father except through the Mother:

"I am your connection [to the Father]. When you are with me in the fullness of union, as full as you can know it while in form, then you are connected, and in, not only my creation, but my wisdom and my love. And in that is all. It is all you need to know or can know or will know.

"It brings you beyond the human experience." (3)

Beyond the human experience means beyond the twelve dimensions of the physical universe.

She tells us that she is active; the Father is still:

"I am All. I am One. ... When I am Father, there is a stillness, complete. ...

"This is something that the human race is simply learning now. It is the union and conjoining of stillness with movement, and how that is the balance of everything. When I am in the Father, I do not require that movement, for that is not the way that I have created the Father. So, they are the two halves of the whole." (4) "Creation comes from movement, and it is movement into form, into energy, into substance, into essence — however you conceive of that. But do not negate the role of the Father, of the masculine, because in that is the stillness of the moment of creation, what you think of. So it is the combination. (5)

Let's hear a Hindu description of this same relationship, from Sri Ramakrishna, perhaps the Mother's most renowned devotee:

"When I think of the Supreme Being as inactive -- neither creating nor preserving nor destroying -- I call Him Brahman [God] or Purusha [Supreme Person], the Impersonal God.

"When I think of Him as active -- creating, preserving, and destroying -- I call him Sakti [Creative Energy] or Maya [Illusion] or Prakriti [Creator or Procreatrix], the Personal God. But the distinction between them does not mean a difference.

"The Personal and the Impersonal are the same thing, like milk and its whiteness, the diamond and its lustre, the snake and its wriggling motion. It is impossible to conceive of the one without the other. The Divine Mother and Brahman are one." (6)

Jesus also gave a nod to this relationship when, having been asked for a password, he said, "A movement and a rest." (7) The Mother is that movement; the Father is that rest.

Keep in mind before reading this next passage that the purpose of life is for us to know who we really are. The Mother's material world (matter, mater, Mother) is our school for learning the answer to that burning question:

"Consider with me for a moment what the Mother Energy is. There are reasons why you have this paradigm, this archetype.

"It is the Mother Nurturer. It is the Mother Disciplinarian. It is the Mother who 'course corrects' you as you grow. It is the Mother who sees you grow into the truth of fulfillment, the evolution of your maturity on every level.

"I am not a thundering, punishing Mother – nor is the Father for that matter!" (8)

When, during an interview, I tried to connect a few dots with her and establish that she was the same as Shakti, her reply startled me:

"When I have spoken about ... Shakti, I have spoken about a part of me. ... She is not the totality of my being. My being is bigger than you can fathom, dear one. So I do not simply mean that she is an aspect manifesting. But it is simply larger than any of you can imagine, particularly at this point." (9)

So the Divine Mother is not a guru, not a being from eleventh-dimensional Arcturus nor the incarnation of the goddess Hera. The Divine Mother is God-inmotion. Mother and Father are two faces of the same golden coin.

So I say that to set up our listening for what follows. The Mother explains to us how her Tsunami of Love works and what it's doing to and for us.

Linda Dillon is the channel. I never stop admiring Linda's channelings of the Mother and I'm sure you'll enjoy them and benefit from them too.

Someone once criticized Linda in my presence and I said if Linda were speaking instead of the Divine Mother, she deserves an Academy Award. The Divine Mother's teachings through Linda are, in my view, profound.

#### Footnotes

(1) Is it "She" or "she"? Michael says: "We do not want anything capitalized." (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Aug. 12, 2016.)

(2) "Transcript of the Divine Mother: Density is Unloving Emotion; Love is Lightness of Being," March 6, 2015, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/ transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/.

(3) "Transcript of the Divine Mother on An Hour with an Angel, May 7, 2012," at http://goldenageofgaia.com/the-2012-scenario/what-role-are-the-angels-playing/ transcript-of-the-divine-mother-on-an-hour-with-an-angel-may-7-2012/.)

(4) Loc. cit.

(5) Loc. cit.

(6) Paramahansa Ramakrishna in Swami Nikhilananda, trans., *The Gospel of Sri Ramakrishna*. New York: Ramakrishna-Vivekananda Center, 1978; c1942, 32.

(7) In response to his disciples' request for a password, Jesus said: "Tell them a movement and a rest." (A. Guillaumont et al. *The Gospel According to Thomas*. New York and Evanston: Harper and Row, 1959, 29.)

(8) "Transcript ~ The Divine Mother: New Year's Message 2017," December 29, 2016, through Linda Dillon, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2016/12/31/new-years-message-2017/.

(9) "The Divine Mother: Come to Me as I Come to You – Part 1/2," Oct. 17, 2012 at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2012/10/the-divine-mother-come-to-me-as-i-come-to-you-part-12/.

# 2013

#### Mother, there are rumors of an "event" soon. Have you any word for us?

Divine Mother: It is not so much an event as yet another increase in the frequencies that are being shared with you. ...

Now, you know for the past several years, but intensely in the last, oh, 16 months of your time you have been penetrated enormously from the One, from our hearts to yours.

And we have said this repeatedly, that this was not an energy that was specific, because it penetrated all beings upon the planet. And that is one of the most significant shifts that took place, that even those who are completely oblivious to such things as Ascension on the soul level said yes.

Now, what is taking place? As we have said, we have stepped back; we are holding the frequency; we are supporting you in the unified field of love. But it is about to increase. Because we choose? No. We have always chosen to give you as much as you could possibly absorb. But might I say that part of our subtle assistance is this raising in frequency so that you can begin to acknowledge and embrace your transdimensional selves?

Your star brothers and sisters also are working very intensely, particularly the healers, the healing ships; they are doing very fine tuning on your new fields.

And you may feel many issues coming to the forefront or situations that are being presented to you. And as they do, these adjustments are being made to empower you as you go on that lift-off to creation.

Now, there are times when you cannot, for example, put your finger, your physical finger into a light socket, because you will be electrocuted, or certainly experience severe discomfort. Now, as this shifting is already underway, you are ready to experience this blissful love.

It is not simply a singular event. It is a series of events where you begin to look at each other and say, "My God, it's happening! And I am in this partnership of creation!" (1)

# Does the quantum leap depend on other events - astrological, astrophysical, terrestrial?

Divine Mother: The quantum leap, my beloveds, is not about this or that occurring. It is about receiving this energy in this expanded reality of Gaia and your universe, so that then you proceed with the fulfillment of what really are miniscule items in the unfoldment of the plan of this or that. (2)

#### What abilities expand under the impact of this energy?

Divine Mother: It is another expansion of your ability to hold love and heart consciousness. The more you expand your capacities and your willingness to hold heart consciousness, which is the totality — and I do mean the totality — then when you do that, you are in full preparation. And it is not simply a singular moment.

And you already have been experiencing these waves. And what I suggest to thee, all of you, is, as you experience these waves, return to them; bring them back; call them forth again and again and again. You will feel in and out of body, and there is nothing to fear about that. It is the process of becoming.

So the event as you are referring to it is the wave of love that is sweeping the planet.

You have only begun with my gift of clarity to have a tiny baptism. Think of it as a drop on the forehead. Well, get ready for the tsunami. (3)

#### I am ready. Can you give us a word picture of the tsunami's arrival?

Divine Mother: Love will sweep you and the planet, and in many ways, dear heart, that is Ascension. Because what it also does is [it] implodes greater consciousness.

You do not live in the old realm. Is there more? Yes. But, yes, that [love] is the way that you move forward. It is the way that you experience.

And it does sweep you away. That is what I mean by the surrender and the bliss. And, make no mistake about it, you do leave your body. *And* you inhabit your body.

You explode and you feel all the energies of the universe. And then, because you are becoming attuned to that feeling, that ecstasy, it steps down, and then you anchor it within your expanded field.

But each time you do the connection, it expands you more and more and more, and your capacity to love, to create, to do, to be, to connect, more and more and more, until there is no memory, no experience, of separation. It was an illusion. It is a false grid. And it has been the shackles. But it is not real. (4)

# You've given us not only the tsunami of love, but waves of purity, clarity, and grace. What are they designed to do, Mother?

Divine Mother: What the purity and clarity bring forth is you knowing the love of you, of you accepting the reality of you, of allowing the false images, the masks, the charade that has been played out in many ways to simply fall away, to dissolve, because it does not serve you and it is not of love.

Now, how you do that, how we do that, is through this infusion of clarity and purity and greater love. So we bathe you; we infuse you; we lift you up so that this discernment is so powerful it is like the tsunami of love. And you are carried gently and softly on the currents to a new home, where you can rest in the knowing of creation, of why you have come, and the sharing of that ecstasy with each other.

Because you did not come to simply live in singularity. You are a unified whole, as are we. What you are coming to understand is that while there is differentiation, there is no difference between each of you, between the kingdoms and the realms.

So, as you begin this, the significant portion is you will see that your sense of being inter-dimensional beings is growing very rapidly. And in that you have the ability, capacity, to interact and to be able to discern that interaction with many different levels of beings — yes, including your star family.

The event is a tsunami of love. But it is not a singular event. This has been in preparation, and this preparation did not simply begin with my initial gift of clarity.

It may have marked the beginning of what you think of as the celebration, or the final unfoldment, but, dear heart this has been in unfoldment for a long time and particularly over the last year.

So, know this. Welcome this. Allow this. This is not something that I am asking you or wanting you or desiring you to work at. And this is not something that you can push back. If you push back, you will stop breathing, and there are very few of you that wish to do that. (5)

### Footnotes

(1) "An Hour with an Angel," February 4, 2013, with the Divine Mother, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/02/the-divine-mother-your-ascension-is-underway-part-22/</u>.

(2) "The Divine Mother: The Role of Clarity," channeled by Linda Dillon, October 7, 2013, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/the-divine-mother-the-role-of-clarity/</u>.

(3) "The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</u>.

(4) Loc. cit.

(5) "The Divine Mother: Be Prepared to Move into Measured, Concerted, and Modest Action," channeled by Linda Dillon, December 6, 2013 at [http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/the-divine-mother-be-prepared-to-move-into-measured-concerted-and-modest-action/.

# 2014

### Not like I want it to, but when will the Tsunami of Love subside, Mother?

Divine Mother: I do not tend to start and stop what I send thee. And I have spoken to you of this tsunami of love. The tsunami of love embraces you, enfolds you, not destroying who you are, but revealing and amplifying your capacity, your truth, not only to fulfill your mission and purpose, because you are already doing that, but to do it in such unrequited joy, such enormous sense of well-being, of love, that there is nothing else.

Oh, love has many faces, as many of you have already discovered, not only in the time of sacred union and partnership, but in family, in friendships, in relationships with the kingdoms, the animals, the grass, the trees, the flowers, the fairies, and yes, love with your star brothers and sisters.

This penetration, this tsunami does not simply wash over you. Beloved ones, it goes right through you. Think of yourself as sheer energy. Think of yourself as a spiritual screen, but one that has no resistance, for the resistance has already been removed.

And so the love moves through you. And that energy, that substance — for it is not simply energetic — those subatomic fibers are joined with yours and they activate you even further, to your potential, to the fullness of your being.

What do I mean by this? Each of you who listen to me this night has already begun to feel the tsunami, and you will begin to feel it even more as I speak. You have not been living or existing or operating at your full potential.

However you define your life and your life force, all of your bodies and your core, you have not as yet reached, in form, as Ascension is occurring, your maximum potential.

Listen to what I say. It is never that you are less than; that is an old human belief that I wish to eradicate and wash away from the very face of Gaia, because she does not need it, and neither do you. But each of you has this magnificent capacity to be in joy, to be in love, to share love, to be the love.

I am not suggesting that you have not loved and shared love with all your heart and that you have not demonstrated time and again your love for me, with your heart, with your mind, with your will, with your actions, with your forbearance, with your consistency, with your persistence, with all of who you are.

But just as your mental capacities, your brain, your hemispheres have not been fully ignited, so the same goes for your capacity to be love, to experience love, both in the personal sense, the universal sense, and the spiritual sense.

It is a complete redefinition of what it means to be human. It is the complete surrender and abolishment, elimination of the old third dimension, because love does not exist in that environment, not the love that I speak of this night.

There is no room for it. They cannot coexist. Such delusions cannot breathe, morph, grow in that kind of love.

And this is what you have asked for, what you have prayed for, but, beloved ones, it is also my Plan, and it has always been my Plan, that in form you would know the fullness of yourself and each other — and when I say 'each other' I mean your star brothers and sisters, the inter-galactics, the planets, the oceans, the mountains, and each other.

You are angels in form, and you have been birthed even prior to that as the essence of One. So you return to that while keeping your magnificent form.

But as you adjust to this vibration and the magnitude of this vibration, it triggers creation and co-creation in deeper, wider, broader, more profound ways within your sacred selves, and of course in unity with All. I do not simply mean the humanoids; I do not simply mean Gaia; I mean with All.

Now, in order that this tsunami that I have begun to activate not simply wipe you away — and I will talk about that — but in order that you are able to absorb and more importantly maintain the energies that are penetrating you, I send this tsunami as waves.

You have begun to feel the ripple. And there are those of you — yes, my visionaries, my New You's who are anchors of this that have volunteered, as

Michael has said, as gatekeepers, as pillars, as wayshowers, as re-patterners, as menders. It comes in waves so that you may absorb and maintain your form.

When someone, a human being, well, all beings, but it is a very different process elsewhere, when you die, when you think of dying, which again is a very outmoded process, when you ascend out of your body there is this moment of sheer joy, of knowing you are returning home. (1)

Now, we do not want you to abandon your body. So the tsunami, by my direction and my Plan, is what you would think of in your terms as measured, so that you may anchor it and go on having this experience.

But it changes what you would think of as your definition of what it means to be in form. I want you, and therefore you are, being in form but coming to the knowing of our infinite connection.

So, if you find yourself smiling, laughing, feeling the bright embers of joy in a heart that you felt was downtrodden, know that you are receiving. Do not in any way do anything with this penetration; simply accept it.

Yes, Steve, you have used the word surrender. Do not fight the current. Let it take you within the tsunami as trust and hope and knowing, so you will not have a concern in the world, in any world, in any universe.

Will there be excitement about what you choose to do with it? Yes! But not initially. Initially, you will simply feel that you are swept up in the current, that you are basking in the waves. And then we will allow for a period of anchoring and integration.

So it has already begun...

Stay still — and I do not mean that you must sit and meditate or contemplate — but do not go about the busyness of your world. Now, I am not telling you, nor do I suggest to any of you, to abandon your jobs, your families, your tasks, your responsibilities. You, my beloved ones, have been perfectly positioned.

And this is not simply my Plan. It is your plan within the Plan. Yes, how you feel about all of this, how you operate, how you approach what you do and how you interact is going to change significantly. It will be virtually unrecognizable.

Move slowly, gracefully. Do not engage in the old. As I have said to you, there is no room, literally no breathing room, for the old illusions, the false beliefs. So if you are attempting to engage in those old patterns, you will literally feel as if you are choking. So avoid them. (2)

#### What is next after this Tsunami of Love?

Divine Mother: Understand, the tsunami is embedded in, irrevocably attached to and part of your Ascension. So there are different rates at which you are absorbing. But what you are saying is, "What do I look like? What is the outcome?" Joy. Not simply joy that comes and goes, not simply love that comes and goes.

There will be no exhaustion. You will finally be at that point of integration where you do not feel that you have to sleep 24 hours a day or that you can't sleep at all. There will be some regulation of patterning — patternings of sleep, patterning of consumption, patternings of how you behave, how you interact, who you interact with, what you create.

So, when you turn to me — some of you next week, some of you next year — and you say, "Mother, I never thought I would be doing this," and we will laugh together, because you have always had the glimmer and the inner knowing of what it was possible for you to do. (3)

#### Is it possible that some people will ascend out of the Tsunami of Love?

Divine Mother: Oh, yes. They have already begun! It has already begun. So you will be hearing more and more of people suggesting, retelling, and relating of their Ascension, that they have been at the portal waiting eagerly in line! But yes, they are through. (4)

#### They will continue to fulfill their mission, etc. – is that correct?

Divine Mother: That is correct, because that is the agreement. That is their desire. If someone wishes to ascend, if someone wishes to die, in your old meaning, then of course they are welcomed home.

But for most who ascend particularly at this juncture, they immediately return. And they already have. They are among you, you know. Most of them simply do not

speak of it because they do not wish to be looking as if they are separate from the masses. But they are there as your wayshowers. They are there as your gatekeepers and your pillars. Oh, yes.

Get ready. (5)

# For the majority, though, Ascension will come a little while longer down the line, I think.

Divine Mother: That is correct. It is not far down the line. (6)

#### Mother, do you wish us just to take the vibrations in and be still?

Divine Mother: There are times to be the sacred observer child but this is not one of them. This is a time of action; of heart-consciousness – of stepping forward into the waves even though you think you may not be able to swim.

Beloved ones, you are buoyant. Unfurl your wings; unfurl your water wings and come ride the wave with me! Come dance with the water sprites and the Healers of Tralana. Then come and dive deep with the whales and dolphins. Come walk the floor of my ocean with your ancient antipode self. Do not fear that you can do this, my beloveds. Do not allow this ancient fear of doubt to cloud your vision and your heart.

I beseech thee – come join with me right now that you, like I, become the wave, become the Love, become the change. Claim your right – the right that I have given you eons ago – to be in the totality of your being; to be in the totality of what you have chosen.

You have come to Gaia at this time to be the re-awakeners; to be the re-patterners, to be the wayshowers, to be free. Now is the time. Shed the shackles of the old and come with me.

Come to the shore, to the sacred lonely places, to the vastness of the mountains and the valleys, to the Cities of Light. Come with me to the blue ocean of your sky, and, yes, even to the places of chaos. Claim your freedom and declare yourself as Love – declare your truth – that you are sons and daughters of my heart and that there is no longer room upon this blessed planet for anything less than Love. We

beckon you – not home – but home to Gaia, home to your beloved self, home to Nova Earth. (7)

#### What is the next step, Mother?

I have come to your shores, the shores of your planet and the shores of your being, to wash you, to bathe you, to cleanse you, to penetrate you, to integrate you, yes, with my clarity, with my purity, with my tsunami of love. And these are catalysts for your expansion, for your raising up, for your ascension, for your great awakening. But it is time. This day, I also add to what I lay at your doorstep, what I instill within your heart, and that is the greater anchoring of grace. (8)

Divine Mother: You are being swept, infused, by my love, but there is a next step that some of you, many of you, are pleading for. Again, you did not even know this, but it is the integration of the energy into your everyday reality.

Many of you have been praying and pleading, begging, for relief, for reprieve. My sweet angels, I would suggest to you that I have a greater understanding of what brings you relief in the truest sense, that you may go forward and claim your place as ascended beings in form, as creator race. ...

I am adding these divine qualities in your human form so that you may deal with the increased energy that I am about to give you. And there is no stopping the tsunami. Let me be clear about this. You have asked to ascend as one, and you will, but there is work to be done. (9)

#### How would you describe the reactions of people to the Tsunami?

Divine Mother: Now, some of you have joined me in the ecstasy of bliss, and I thank you. I thank you for letting me in. You say, "Well, Mother, I knew you were coming in anyway." That is true, but there are many who resist.

Now, let us talk about this group [who resist] — some who are oblivious. They do not truly concern me, for in many ways they are the most effortless to penetrate. But those who are despondent, depressed, in despair, or who say, "I don't feel anything," you are praying for relief and then telling me, which I have no objection to, exactly how this relief will take place, what it will look like, what the tangible

form will be, how it will look and smell and taste, and I want to give you more than that. (10)

Divine Mother: There are three groups – some who are feeling the very rapid and strong currents of the tsunami, because you have volunteered to do this for the oblivious group, and to assist those who are struggling in awareness.

Now, the difficulty in this, if you are doing your work, the infusion of the grace will help, and the central breathing of blue. Take yourself out of the rapids, child, and come and sit by the shore, or on your front lawn, or on your bed! I will tend to you.

Then there is the second group who is afraid to believe. I have believed so many things, and I have hoped for so many things, so I don't dare trust. And, sweet angels, again it is not so much that you do or do not trust me, us, all, it is the fundamental denial of trusting yourselves, of trusting not only that you are guided, but your own guidance, about why you are on the planet of Gaia in the first place. Why has this sweet planet even accepted you?

So, might I ask you to stand back and let go of that fear and mistrust? I am banging, knocking on the door to your heart. Please let me in.

Then there is the third group. And these are the ones that need help, for they are tired. They are battle-weary, and it is not that you do not serve. It is that you serve with everything you have. And you feel that you have nothing left to give. And you feel somewhat that you are semi-comatose.

Let us take you to the shallows, to the crystal-clear blue water, and hold you the way we have held you so long ago in the Dead Sea, that you will simply float and receive regeneration and the love. My beloved ones, you are not done yet. Yes, if you choose to come home, I will welcome you. I will lift you up. I will celebrate your return. But let us also be clear, that does not end your journey. It simply alters the course. And you continue on.

But you can stay in form, and know — not think, not maybe, but know — not only my love, but the love of All. And you will learn very rapidly to love yourself again. (11)

#### Your availability to us is surely unprecedented, Mother.

Divine Mother: I have come to you as never before. I am not merely standing in front of you or next to you or flooding the planet. I am within you. And that is why I have said, I am the tsunami and you are the tsunami. I am Gaia and you are Gaia. I am peace and you are peace.

One of the difficulties with the tsunami is that so many of you are expecting high drama. Yes, the human addiction of the old realm. I tell you right now, you cannot be in grace, in love, being love and engender or embody drama. They do not, and they cannot, coexist. I do not contain the drama. So the humans who are saying, "I don't feel anything," are expecting high drama. That is not the way that we work.

We have had quite enough drama to last until the end of time, which is never going to happen, by the way. So shed the addiction to drama. Give it to Raphael or Raj. Let us eliminate this silly addiction once and for all. Because drama is created only to serve lower vibration — control, greed, lust, hatred, fear — and that will never create anything, except stall, freezing, being stuck, as you put it.

So, let this go. And when you are witnessing the drama — and you have many, many fine examples at the moment; you do not need to create it personally; simply look to the Middle East — but this is where it started and where it will finish. It is the process that we do not speak of very often but of elimination and dis-creation. In the creation of Nova Earth, yes, there will be emotions. That is the delight of being human. And the cities of light will radiate with diversity. But the drama that tears down the human heart and mind, there is no place for it. (12)

#### You've strengthened your Tsunami of Love?

Divine Mother: I have strengthened my Tsunami of Love because as it washes through you it not only imbues you with grace. You are required to call upon the purity, the clarity, the grace to make it through.

And I will not allow you to drown or suffocate or tip your boat. You have begun this day by saying that we are one. I am not calling you home. I am calling you to come and play, to play in this magnificent garden of Gaia, which has been morphed, actually, for a place for you to fulfill, a place for you to become, to create, and yes, to resurrect. This is a truth we do not often speak of. We speak of reconstruction, re-direction; but we talk about resurrection this day in the truest meaning of the word. You are resurrecting the truth of who you are. Individually and collectively, you are resurrecting my Plan for this planet.

You are resurrecting your desire to build Nova Earth. It is why you first came and it is why you have come in form, incarnated, not that you may fly free and fly home, but what is unique in all my universes, that you will anchor and be the love in form.

Whether you are angel or starseed, hybrid or Earthkeeper, you have all begun as that infinite and eternal spark of light and love. That does not change. So what you are doing is awakening it, anchoring it, becoming the fullness of your multidimensional selves, and letting go of any belief, any issue that bars you from joy. (13)

### Where will the Tsunami of Love take us?

Divine Mother: This Tsunami of Love is a sacred undertaking based on the sacred partnership with your Mother.

After you have unified with your sacred self, you unify with us, because in our union there can be nothing but unconditional love, surrender, merger, conjoining, joy, bliss, excitement, peace — all of the desirable qualities that you yearn for. The mutuality. (14)

### Footnotes

(1) Cf. the death experience of Father Andrew Glazewski

"The ecstacy of dying is something I can never express. It is suddenly like becoming light itself. It is so wonderful. It is heat and coolness. It is warmth in the mind. It is clarity of vision and understanding. It is like a clap of divine thunder and, hey presto! there I am, out of my old tiresome old body, leaping about in the glorious ether; and you've no conception of what dying is like.... It is a Communion, a Sacrament of living on a higher level - this is the most transforming experience that any mortal can attain. I am overcome with joy, pure *joy*." (Father Andrew Glazewski in Cynthia Sandys and Rosamund Lehmann, *The Awakening Letters*. Jersey: Neville Spearman, 1978, 83-4.)

(2) "The Divine Mother: My Tsunami of Love Will Shift You Permanently."), channeled by Linda Dillon, January 30, 2014, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/</u>2014/02/the-divine-mother-my-tsunami-of-love-will-shift-you-permanently/.

(3) Loc. cit.

(4) Loc. cit.

(5) Loc. cit.

(6) Loc. cit.

(7) "The Divine Mother - Come Ride the Wave!" channeled by Linda Dillon, June 2, 2014, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/06/02/the-divine-mother-come-ride-the-wave/</u>.

(8) "The Divine Mother: We are Creating a New Species of Humans," July 12, 2014, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/07/12/the-divine-mother-we-are-creating-a-new-species-of-humans/</u>.

(9) Loc. cit.

(10) Loc. cit.

(11) Loc. cit.

(12) "The Divine Mother: The Table is Set; You are Ready for the Dance," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sep. 18, 2014, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/</u>2014/09/20/the-divine-mother-the-table-is-set-you-are-ready-for-the-dance/.

(13) The Divine Mother: My Desire is that Every Being on the Planet Falls in Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sept. 26, 2014, <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/</u>2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love.

### How do you work your magic, Mother?

Divine Mother: What I do [is] I give you again and again and again and again, my essence. I am part of you. Inseparable. My essence is love.

Now, in many cultures and civilizations, they call that love by many names. That does not matter because the knowing, the feeling, the experience, the energy does not change. I am a part of thee, each and every one of you - and this has been reinforced by my Tsunami of Love.

But, beloveds, you are also a part of me, of us, of One. And that is the piece that oftentimes is forgotten. And that is why I say there is no separation. (1)

#### How can we conceive of the Tsunami, Mother?

Divine Mother: Think of the Tsunami in many ways, for each of you has unique capacity to visualize. But it also travels upon our umbilical cord, our umbilical cord from mine to yours, for your umbilical chakra is the area and the center, the energy center where you are not only connecting to the Divine Feminine energy but you are also eliminating.

It is your chakra, unique, for this process of elimination and eliminating, sweet angels, anything in any realm, in any form, in any vibration; to let go of what does not serve thee.

So, understand my Tsunami does not merely come to you through the front of your body. In fact, many of you are somewhat resistant at times and you cling to what you know...and I do not say that in way of criticism. You do this to help yourself anchor in body, in form, upon Gaia.

So, I also send my Tsunami through the back of you, through the rear of you, yes, through every cell and fiber of your being, through every chakra, but particularly through this chakra of your umbilical so that you may eliminate, and let go, surrender; eliminate, what does not serve you, what is not of the truth, the grace, the purity, the clarity of who you are.

At this time, I beseech you, allow the Tsunami, allow the wave of my Love, of my essence, to lift you up to new heights, what you think of as higher realms, higher dimensions, higher frequencies, higher states of being, because it is where you belong, it is where you have always belonged.

With this Tsunami I bring you, I give you, I gift you, I bless you with increased clarity, increased purity, increased love, increased grace. Why? In order for you to go forward, not merely to ride the wave, but as you arrive in the higher dimensions, as you arrive in the valleys, in the tree-tops, on the top of Mt. Everest, that you are prepared, fully equipped to take action, to step forth in the fulfillment of your mission, your purpose, your plan, yes, it is all within mine but I do not have the desire, nor will I interfere with your fulfillment. ...

Embrace this. This is my request and prayer. Allow, allow the Tsunami to carry you, to enter you. I am not done! And there is no turning back.

So, come and ride this wave in outrageous, miraculous joy and the knowing of fulfillment. Come and leap into my arms. I am waiting and I am here, I am right here with you, my beloveds. (2)

#### What's its relation to what folks are calling "the Event"?

Divine Mother: The Event is a tsunami of love [i.e., a heart opening], but it is not a singular event. This has been in preparation and this preparation did not simply begin with my gift of clarity. (3)

### Footnotes

(1) "Transcript of the Divine Mother: Density is Unloving Emotion; Love is Lightness of Being," March 6, 2015, through Linda Dillon, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-divine-mother-unloving-emotion-density-love-lightness/</u>.

(2) "The Divine Mother via Linda Dillon: Reaching New Heights," May 18, 2015, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/05/18/divine-mother-via-linda-dillon-reaching-new-heights/</u>.

(3) The Divine Mother in "Clarity, Purity, and Love: The Basic Spiritual Movement Restated," Dec. 5, 2013, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/spiritual-essays/</u>

the-divine-plan-for-life/clarity-purity-and-love-the-basic-spiritual-movementrestated/.)

# 2017

### What have you in store for us in 2017, Mother?

Divine Mother: I am reinvigorating, I am reactivating and I am bringing forth my Tsunami of Love. It has been the beginning and it is the end. No, not the end of life or civilisation or existence, but think of it as an opening bracket and a closing bracket, and in between you have had, of course, many of my waves – it never stopped – of my Tsunami of Love, penetrating each and every particle of your being.

Then the masters and my archangels and all the legions have added their energy to you, and then your Star brothers and sisters have added their Porlana C to you. And now I am telling you I am reactivating the Tsunami of Love to wash away and complete what we have begun together – not to end anything, but it is a new chapter of existence! So think of it as the rinse-off, and I am rinsing you and immersing you and buoying you up with my love. (1)

Divine Mother: I am increasing the frequency of my Tsunami of Love. Yes, it has been intense. But this is a period of fulfillment. And, sweet angels of light, fulfillment is intense! Your hearts, your love, your ecstasy, your minds, your physical bodies. You feel – because you are sensitives – that you in many ways are exploding. Do not try. Do not even think or consider tamping it down. (2)

Divine Mother: Your old 3rd is gone. Think of it as though you are watching a black & white 1920s film and the reel or the film is shredding. Let it shred. Let it be. Leave that to others. (3)

Divine Mother: As you know, there is still a great deal of the chaos – which is being broken up even as we speak – but there is a great deal of chaos still upon your planet. And if it wasn't so tragic, it truly would be humorous. (4)

#### Because it's such a folly?

Divine Mother: It is such a folly and it is beyond absurd, but it is tragic. Now that is being broken apart the way deep ice on a lake breaks apart in the spring, and the recalcitrant, whether they know it or not, like it or not, accept it or not, declare it or not, it matters not – not one being upon your planet is exempt from both the Porlana C and my renewed, resurgent Tsunami of Love; not one being. ...

What we are focused on is washing everything clean; first washing it out, washing it out, washing it out, but with each wave, with each ripple of each wave, we are also infusing, infusing, infusing.

And with the infusion of my love, my energy, my pattern – and your Star family's energy and pattern – there is no room for anything else. So it is as if you are getting the suds and the rinsing cycle at the same time! (5)

# Is that why we can't remember anything - we're going around and around in a washing machine?

Divine Mother: Yes, very much! And you are circling the drain, and sometimes you are holding on for dear life! [Laughter] (6)

#### Footnotes

(1) "Universal Mother Mary ~ Resurgence Of The Tsunami Of Love," Heavenly Blessings ~ May 2, 2017, at <u>https://counciloflove.com/2017/05/universal-mother-mary-resurgence-of-the-tsunami-of-love/</u>.

(2) "The Mother Promises a Massive Heart Opening – Part 2/2," Sept. 6, 2017, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/?p=289519</u>.

(3) "Video and Transcript: Universal Mother Mary's Mother's Day 2017 Message: Resurgence of the Tsunami of Love, May 14, 2017, at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/</u> 2017/05/14/video-universal-mother-marys-mothers-day-2017-message-moms-giftto-us/.

(4) "Universal Mother Mary's Ascension Splash!" Channeled by Linda Dillon, May 31, 2017, at <u>https://counciloflove.com/2017/05/universal-mother-marys-ascension-splash/</u>.

(5) Loc. cit.

(6) Loc. cit.

# 2019

# What is your intention for these latest waves of your Tsunami of Love, Mother?

Divine Mother: The old is being swept away by my final waves of my Tsunami of Love...and this is My Plan. It does not mean that we abandon those who have said no, or maybe, or thanks but no thanks, but what it means, regardless of those who ignore, is the new paradigm emerges, anchors, is fully present.

And it is not merely fully present because of our input, energies, downloads, teachings...it is fully present, beloved ones, because of you, because of your choices, your decisions, your actions, your interactions, your creations. (1)

#### Footnotes

(1) Universal Mother Mary's New Year's Message, Jan. 5, 2019," January 6, 2019 at <u>http://goldenageofgaia.com/2019/01/06/universal-mother-marys-new-years-message-jan-5-2019/</u>.